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,Judgment: 

IN TIlE SlJPIlliME COURT OF WESTERN SAMOA 

HELD AT APIA 

IN THE MATI'ER 

IN TIlE MATrER 

AND: 

A N D: 

A S Vaai and T IVlalifa for pet,i tiOller 
'I' R S Toailoa for first respondent 

MISC, 20449 

of The Terri tor ial 
Constituency of 
Satupaitea 

of an Election Petition 

ASIATA SALEIMJA VAAl of 
Siusega and Vaega, Matai 

Petitioner 

TAVUI LENE of Pi tonuu 
and Tafuna, Hatai 

First ResQQndent 

FAUATEA SALE of VaegR 
c;nd Tafuna, Natai 

Second Respondent 

~JASE TOTA 
Returning 
RegistJI'EU' 
and Voters 

of Apia, Chief 
Officer and 
of Electors 

Thircl ResQQndent 

H Soh1.]ster for second (".Ind. third respondents 

20, 21, 2,J., 25, 2fl, 27, 28 -IlU1e 1996 & 2 .Tub- 1996 

,J{)DGMhNI' OF SAPOLU, C.J 

c\ gemerRl election for lI'est;ern Samoa Has on 2G April. 1996 and t,he official 

resul ts "ere publicly notified by the Chief Electoral Officer on 14 ~Jay 1996 
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after tche ,Jreliminary results had been announced over R9.Cito ZAP on election 

night .. The resnlt of the poll for the territorial const.it.nency of Sat.npaitea Has 

publicly notified and declared by the Chief Elect.oral Officer as follm;s : 

Candidates Votes Received 

.Asiata Salei.rnoa Vaai 374 

Fanat.ea Sale 93 

Tavui Lene 405 

Tuimaseve Fuea 112 

Tot.al number of valid vot.es 984 , 
Number of votes rejected as informal 2 

• 

The candidate Tavu; Lene Has therefore rleclared to be elected. 

B:v an election petit.ion dated 19 May 1996, the candidate Asiat.a Saleimoa 

Vas.i sought from t.his Court the follm'ing declarations : 

(a) That t.he first respondent, Tavui Lene, Has guilt.y of the electoral 

CQrrupt practice Qf ,mdue influence and t.herefore her election be 

declared void and t.he petitioner be declared as having being d.uly 

elected. 

Ib) That the first respondent '''as not qualified to be a candidate for 

electi on and that her election Has void and the petitioner be 

declaJ;;ecl as having being duly elected. 

(c) Tha.t tlk~ second respondent Fauatea Sale "f,'f1.S not qualified t,o be Ft 

nandidate for election and his participation had. affected the result, 
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• of the election and that the eJection of the first respondent was 

therefore, void. 

In respect of the pf?titi.on against the second respondent Fauatea Sale, that Has 

dismissed on :31 ~Ia:v 1996 as the petit,ion had not been served against the second 

respondent "ithin the time allm,ed l.U1der the Electoral Petition Hules 1964. The 

Court, "ill therefore not be concerned in this judgment ,dth the decla.ration 

sought. in resppct of paragraph Ie) above. Perhaps I should also add here that 

there HaB no ev·idenop. in t.hese proceedings 1-,0 suggest t,hat, the votes polled b~l 

the sE!oond reSI)ondent Hould have gone in s-ufficient nurnhers to the pet,i tioner to 
• 

caus<? him to bp eleoted if the seoond respondent had not been a candi.date for 

• election at the Sat.upaite8.. territori.r."l.l ("~onstituency. 

T turrl nOh! to the allega.tions of oorrupt practic.es to which thp: first, 

declaration sought by the pe1:.i 1:.ioner relates. The particular kind of corrupt 

practic<? complained of is undue influence. Section 98 of the Elec·1:.ora1 Act 196:, 

AS Amended bv sect,ion 30 of the E1eotora1 ,\menoment Aot 1995 provides insofar as 

it iR relevant for the purpose of thp present, proceedings as fo11m,s : 

II ( 1) E'./ery person is gui 1 t~~i" of 8. corrupt practice who commi t.s t.he offence 
"of undue infl11enee, 

"( 2) 

"(0.\ 
" 

" ,. 

"(b) 

hVFH'y perSC)1,l. cCllnmits the offence of unclue influence h~ho -

Direc-t.ly- or indirectly: b;v himself or b:.~ any at,her pprson on 111.8 
behalf, mFtkes use of or threatens to make use of any force, violence 
or restr3irlt: or inflicts or threaten.s t.o "inflict, b;:.:- hime.elf or by-
8.,ny (-:\T.her person, an:r... i.njury, dama.ge, harm or loss upon or 
a,gai ns t an,Y" person 1 in order to induce or oompel t.hat person t,o votp 
for or 8.gainst a particulR,I' ca.ndidate •.. 
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"(c) 
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• 

By hi_ITtself or Rn~; other person on his behalf withholds a certificatp: 
<If identi.ty "belonging to another eleotor or voter and in dointg so 
i ndl.1ce;;_~ tha.t, elector or voter to votA for a. particular candidate. or 
prevents t-.hat elector or voter from voting for a particular 
cElndi.clate or from voting in that. elect:.i.on". 

The first al1e.g:ation of l.1ndue i.nfluel'},ce contained in the original petition 

32. amended by t.flf': amt::nded petition da.ted 19 Jl.me 1990 is that tl1P first, 

l-'espondent, (,IY' herself or t.l:lrough heI' agents Faasalafa Vaifale 1 Faalogo ~'Iilo ~ 

FaJeao Lagj and Faleao Salevao Hithheld the certifieat,es of identit;>.' (IDs) of up 

to 200 electors Hhioh W(~r.e returned on the r1:qy before elec-t-,ion day or immer.liatel.y 

beforp. tlH-: votes "'JI:owe cast on e.1ection da:-.' and innluded the IDs of certa.in , 
elpct.ors ~\rho a.re specificaLly named in the petition. Obviously this parti.c1l1r-rr . , 
allegatlon of ul1dup infJ UF,:ncp relat.es to sect,ion ~g (2) (c) of the Act.. Even 

t,hou.gh the present al18gat.ion of UndlJe 'i nfluence 1S e},;:pI'E>ssed in general terms, 

il,lp, clear' from th(e evidence in these proceedings that it refers to the l"it,h-

ho l.rling; of IDs of electors Hho cast their votes here in .'-\pia at the polling hoot.h 

for S8t.upaitf~A speciaJ vo·te~, 't.oJhich ",as at TEtufusj and t,hF.: electorp, Hho casi-. their 

votf,,, at theo poll j,ng booths at Satupait.ea. 

J \dll deal first Hit.h the present allegation as it relateF. to tht:::: 

HithholrlLng of In..; l·Jhich. y·.;rere given out to electors at the pol] ing booth for 

S~t.upai.t-eFl for sp8c~i.8:1 vot.es at'. Taufusi. For the pet,itioner, the Hitnf~sP, Fol3,sa 

Tf.:.r'em. LA. g}1Ve evidence t.hat he h8.d. \,lorked in support of the candicl9cy of the fi pst 

respondent in tbe Jast. ger1eral election and he Ha.S chosen to t.he first 

ee,spondBnl-,'.s corfllnitte(~ to help out in .-\pia I,.cith t.he election. ..'-\ccording to 

Fn18,s3 Ieremi8 ~ those perF.n:w-:c, Hho ,,<rer'€'.' picl:;-ed tC) comE:' to Apia gathered at V:i.?'li, 

Sa,tupai.tea, on :~4 :'\pril 199G aDd he observed the fi.rst, responderlt gi.v-i_ng {)1.rt. of 
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her b):'lnclbag a pach:et of IDs to her son Faa.salafa Vaifale for the elec.~tors in 

Apia. Thosp. IDs Here brought to Apia on the same day and Folas8 Ieremia 

testifi.ed t.hat in tbA evpning "t""hi.le t.heir group from Satupai"b<:]a \·.;e1'e staying at 

the first respondent's house at ~'Iatautu, he ()bserved Faasalafa. Vaifale checking 

Lhrnugh the IDs. F"""saJafa Vaifale returned to Savaii on 25 April and in the 

mor·ni.ng of polling da.',r, 2G April, before the booths Here opened, Folasa Ieremia's 

evidence "as that he observed Falello Lagi, Faleao Sale8.o, Lia F&"tt.amalii and Fio 

Taua1. i i cl1e8king the same IDs again. He estimated the number of IDs to be about. 

If)O, Lja l?ru:,"ta.ffi.3,lii ~=!.:n.d Fio Taua1.ii Here amongst the group thH,t~ came '.vith Folasa 

Ieremi fl and Faasal ah, Va; fa] e from Sat.up8.; tea to assist h'i th t.he candidacy of t.he 

fi.l'st rpsponripnt in Api.a • 

• 

According to Folasa Teremia the aforesaid IDs were distributed to electors 

on. election morning by Faleao La.gi, Fa-leao Salevao: Lia Faatamalij and Fio 

Tau"l:;; ."tt I:.he polling booth for Satupaitea special vot.es at. Taufusi. Amol,gst. 

th~ electJ1I'S of Satupai tea. Hho Here ,given out IDs at the Taufusj polling booth 

Here Paesp. Tavui Toatasi, Leaoa I(olio and Alaimalo Faleao. Folasa Ieremia also 

testi.fied that. t.here Here ma.ny other elect.ors of Sa-r,up8.itea "ho Here given IDs 

at the Taufusi polling booth by the first respondent.' s commi.t.tee but he could not 

, 
Other "l.Jitnesses l.Jere also called by the petitioner and they also testified 

that. they observed IDs being given out. by supporters of t.he first. respondent. t.o 

Rlectors of Satup:::.u.tea at -the Taufusi polling booth immediat,ely before and duri.ng; 

tl1p. hours of polling. l'hp. 'pitness Seleselp EliaJ::l §!}lVP evjdence t.llS.t ;·::hen hp 

CA.rne {-'l.t, ::l..ho1..lt, 1.0.00am t.n cast his vote at the T8..ufusi. l"lolling h)ot.h , he observed 
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F~lleao Lagi, Faleao 8alevao and Lia Faa.tamalii ,giving out IDs to electors and he 

l-,)H,,(;; able to recognisp one slJdl elector to be Tiafau Teta.. During the time he pas 

at thp Taufusi booth, Selpsele Eliala said he observed more IDs being givpn out 

to e lert,ors by thl" supportprs of the first respondent. In cross-examina.tion 

Splp~;Ale EliaJ.a said. that of thA persons he obsAn.red. giving out IDs to electors, 

he knot ... ;;s only F8..1ean Salevao. 

( 

Selesele Eliala al".o testified as to "hat pas said hy one Naoupu Faleao to 

t.hf-~ p(~t,itioner on 28 May' 1996 more thsn a month a.fter' the election. Naoupu 

FFtl''33.0 did not g"i. ve evidenee El,ncl therefore this part of Selese Ie Eliala.' s 

T do not propose to rely on that part of the present 

~'J:i~tness' s evid.enee nottJi thst.andi.l1g submi.ssions from the pF!ti tioner that that part 

of Selesel,", III ia18' s ,",vidence should be admissible 1mder the provisions of 

spc:tion 115 of the Electoral Act 1963. 

T118 ';vj tness NHi l?ualaga gave evidence that he ".Jas a,t~ the ",raufusi pollin~ 

booth on polling day from about 9.00am in the morning until. closure of the poll 

at 3, OOpm in t.he aft.ernoon and he observed Faleao Lagi, Faleao Salevao, Lia 

FaatamaJii, Fio Taualii and Fol8,sa Ieremia giving oot. IDs inside the house Hhere 

the Ta.ufusi booth Has located_ to electors of Satupaitea j namel"y, Segia Peniamina 7 

Fa18 T'n~lj, Homeo S",lesele Fal"" Tavui Tamotll, Naoupu Faleao, Tiafau Teta, 
• 

Vaalepu '[osAfa, Filo Leaoa Laupau, Nuufuli Pule and Lia Lafoga. 

Th~ "[.;'itness D'Iilo Tusao gave evidence that on polling day he observed Falea.o 

Lagi, Ft'tleRc) SH,le-',·-ao and Lis.. Faatamali i giving out. IDs to many e leotors of 

SatupaH.efl at. the Taufusi polling boo·th. He «as able to recognise Fala Ta\~li, 
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R,,,,meo Selesele Fale and Tiafau Ausi tini as some of the elect,ors to "hom Faleao 

Salevao gave 0ut IDs. Milo Tusao also gave evidence that on :31 !,Jay 1996 he "ent 

Hith 'l'uugaUi Agafili and Polo Alaelua to ~jalie to see Vaalepu losefa ",ho t,old 

them they had received their IDs from the first respondent's committee on 

election morning ",hen t.he,c Hent t.o cast t.heir vot.es at. t.h" Taufusi polling boot.h. 

The Hitness Tiafau Iosefa 1-vho ~~as scrutineer for the petitioner at the 

Taufusi polling booth also gave evidenc" t.hat Faleao Lagi, Faleao Salevao, Lia 

FafttF.unalii and Fio Tallalii Here at the Taufusi polling booth on polling day. 

Tl,P' Hit,ness Toe 1 all Ta.loPFUl gave evidence that he HPnt. to ca.st his v(yte at 

trie 'Taufusi polling boot,h on polli.ng cl~"ty at about 1.00pm in the afternoon and 

t.here he observed Faleao Lag; , Faleao Salevao and Lia Faat.amalii "ith t.he support. 

of Fio Taual ii and Folasa Ieremia giving out IDs to electors inside the house 

",here t.lle pol1i.ng booth Has locat.ed. Toelall Talopau also gave evidence as t.o 

"'hat he heard Naoupu Faleao saying t.o the petitioner inside the pet.itioner's 

offioe 01'1 28 ~jay 1996. As Naoupu Faleao did not. give evidenoe, t.his part of 

Toelau Talopau's evidence is hearsay and I do not propose to aot on that 

eviclenc.e. 

The ~,d.tness 8.nd elector Noeleoi Toleafoa gave evidenct= that his LD H8S 

hT ith11eld b;v- '[.he first. respondent and her cOIDmi ttee Hhen i.t h'as issued in February 

1996 and it Has only given baok to him at the Taufusi polling booth on polling 

day. 

l\S for the Hitness Faleao Tipa,8a I fourid his affidavit evidence to be so 
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inoonsistent." Hit.!} the oral testimony he gave in cross-examination that i t ~vOllld 

be unsafe to accept any part of his evidence. 

Likepise the Hitness Vasega Leaoa l s evidence ..... as so unsatisfactory that it 

must he rejeot.ed. This Hitness "hen pressed by cow1sel for the first respondent. 

in cross-examination did not IInoH the people ~,Jhose names are in his Sl>TOrn 

affidavi t. His explanation Has that he had been aHay from Satupai tea for about 

20 yea.rs. T put aside this ">litness's evidence . 

• The evidence called for the first respondent to rebut the allegation 

c'-~ncerning the Hithhold.ing of electors IDs and the distribut.ion of those IDs to 

plectors at the Taufus; polling booth on polling day consisted almost. entirely 

of R joint affid.a;vit signed by all ,,~~itnes8es called for the respond.ent on this 

aspect of the case except for the tvitness VaaleplJ Iosefa Hho st.;ore and signed a 

separate affidavit. The SRme joint affidavit also contains signatures of several 

persons • .;:110 did not appea,r to gi"ve 8yidence as "1 ... .'811 a.s tl1e names of a number- of 

peoplR h'ithout any sigmt,ures a.nd "..;ho di.d, not appear to give evidence. Why the 

joint affidavit. is in suoh a state Has not. clear from t.he evidence. The Deputy 

Hegistrat" of this C011rt. l-.i'hO hRd the joint affidavit SHorn also wrote at the end 

of t.he afficlavi t that this affidavi t F8..S SHorn separately in groups, hot each of 

• 
UIf' t\ri .. tnesS8S h'ho si.gnpri -the affi.davit. and Has called to testify in these 

IX'''oceedings st.ated that hp Ol~ she 'i..;as sworn separately and individually . 

• 
The giBt. of the evidence in this joint affidavit is an outright denial tha"t 

the first respondent H1 tlll1f'ld e}ectors IDs Hhich Here only given to the eleotors 

on !",he Ci::::l.y before (:;lec"Lion da~v. The \.,fitness Alai.mal.o Paleao ';..;ho signed the joint 
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cJ{fidavl t testified t.o having kep-t h(~r 0',n ID and denied the eVldence of the 

tdtness Folasa Ieremia Hho testified t.hat he observed Alaimalo Faleao as one of 

t.he elpctors ~"hose ID tvas given out by Paleao Lagi, Faleao SalAvao j Lia 

FaatamaHi. and Fio Ta.uali 1 on polling day at. the Taufusi polling booth. Alaimalo 

Faleao also testified that Faleao Lagi and Faleao SalAvao Here at the Taufusi 

polI-ing boot.h on polling day but he did no·t see any IDs being ,given out t.o 

(- electors. , 

The Hit.ness Toeupu Gafa Hho also signed the ,joint affidavit. denied that. any 

1l):7'. were given out to electors by the respondent's supporters at, the Taufusi 
~ 

poUing boot.h on polling day and did not see Faleao Lagi or Faleao Salevao at. 1011e 

Ta:ufusi boot.h. This Hitnes" also t.estified to having l<ept. her ID and denied her 

m Has ,,ithhe101 by anyone inoluding the first respondent. 

1'118 Hi tness Tiafau Ausitini Hho also signed the joint affidaYit gave 

8vi.den.~e that she made her own ID and kept it herself. She denied the evidence 

of jVlilo T1!sao "ho said t.hat. Tiafau Ausi tIni ",as one of the electors to ",hom 

Faleao Salevao gave out her ID at the Taufusi polling booth on FOlling day. This 

"it,ness also testified that Hhen she "lent. t.o the Taufus] booth to cast her vote 

shp did not observe Faleao Salevao Hho Has at the hooth at -the t.ime gi vin,Q: out 

SPy TDs. to e l(~ct,ors . 

• ThR Hi,tn.ess Lp30a l(olio Hho also si,gned the. joint, affida.vit denied that, 

an,cone "ithbeleJ hts ID ,"hich h", kept. himself and "hich he brought. ",ith him from 

SataplIfil.H T-JhAn he came to C':ast his vote at the Taufusi polling booth on polling 

dB-Yo TJlis ~.Ji1-,ness :=JJsn denied t,hat. any IDs Here gjven out to electOr'R at. the 
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'~ufusi booth on polling da;;. 

The Hitness Fala TanJi. gave evidence that he had alHays kept his ID lmtil 

polling day "hen he Hent to the Taufusi pDlling boot.h to cast his vote. While 

be testified that he saH Faleao Lagi at the Taufusi booth he said that hp did not 

observe Faleao Lagi giving out any IDs to electors. 

The Hitness Elikapo Pule gave evidence that he Hent to the Taufusi polling 

booth at about 8.00am on polling day and Hhpn thp booth Has openpd he Has the 

first eleotor to cast his vote. He testified that he did not see any person , 
giving out IDs at. the Taufusi polling booth on polling day. 

The Hi tnpss Nuufl.1li Pulp gavp evidpnce that he I,ppt his OHll ID and no one 

of the first rpspondent's Gommittpp Hithheld his ID. jjp also test.ifipd that hp 

arrived from Afega at the Taufusi polling booth at about 2. OOpm in the afternoon 

to CH.st his vote and lvhile he saJ'] Faleao Lagi: Faleao Saleva.o, Lia Faatamali i and 

Fo18sa Ierpmia at the Taufusi booth, he said that none of t.hose persons Has 

giving out IDs to plectors. 

The ~"i tness Tiafau Teta gave evidenc(= th8t she is the Hi fe of Vaalepu 

Tospfa and that l1Pither the f:irst. rpspondpnt, nor Faasalafa Vaifale, Faleao Lagi, 
• 

Paleao Salevao or any other person had the oustody of her ID or gave her m to 

• hpr on election day. Sh" testifipd that she alHaye, hM her ID \<Ii.th hpr and she 

brought -i"t l;.Tith h8J:' to t.he Taufusi polling booth to cast her vote on polling day. 

1"J18 Hi tness Vaalepu Iosefa. gave pvidence that hp. had the ClIstody of his ID 

10 
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UI> to election day- and 1'1" denied that the first, respondent "ithheld his ID. He 

further denied that he admitted to Tllllgalii ilp;afili and ~Iilo Tusao when they came 

to him at, i'laliE' tha-o, hi", ID Ivas only given back to him on the morning; of polling 

day. This "Hness also denied the evidence of Vasega Leaoa Hho testified that 

hE' sa" thE' first r-espondent' s committee giving out, to Vaalepu losefa his ID at 

the Taufusi pnlling booth on polling day. 

The ,\·,;ritnesS8S Mataomaile Talanai of Faleasiu Hho cast, her speoial vote at 

Faleasiu as Hell as the ",itnesses Emele Vaalepu of 1'Ialie and Lalovi Gafa of 

V"i't-lele whn cast. t.heir vot"s at, the Taufusi polling booth, all denied that their • 
IDs had bee:rl ld. thhe1.d by the first respondent, or her sttpporters. There T...ras no 

e,Jidence from the pet; t,j oner to prove that the IDs of those electors Here i. n faci-

t-Jithheld by tbe first respondent or her supporters. The allegation of undue 

influence insofar as it, relates to those electors is therefore dismissed. 

Now T have given careful consideration to the comflicting evidence given 

by' UHe Idtnesses for t11,,,, petitioner and the h'itnesses for the first respondent 

anfl I have .. ) decided to 8,ccept the Avidence given by the peti tioner'.s hTi tnesses 

that Faleao La.gi, Faleao Sa] evao , Lia Faatama.lii and Fin T311a.lii t,;tere gjving: OU!-. 

IDs to a, D_cunber -c:yf (-'lectors of S8.:tllIlait.ea at· the Taut'usi. polling booth on [1l..Jlling 

di1.Y r partioular]~'" during t}w:, hour,q of polling. J ha.ve also decidpd to accept the 

p,ridence of Fo.las::t T.eremi.a that those IDs h'ere the IDs given by the first 

• respondent to hpr son F8asfl]afa VaifaJe at. Vini, Satupaitea, on 24 April 1996 to 

he:.: brought to Apia ... d'l81'1 Faass.lafa Vpdfale iLia Faatmnali i, Fio T8.ualii and Folas[l, 

T eremi.Fl c.amp to Apj a thR smne d8~-. Thos8 '\<Jp.re -the same IDs that Folasa Ieremj a 

tes(-.ifi 8(.1 t.ha-t-.. he oh;:.:e:eved Faa,sal:1..fa. VFl:U'~ale checked at t.he house of the first 

1 1 
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rf'spondent at. I"latautu in the evening of 24 April and ",hich "ere checked again b~' 

Faleao Lagi, Faleao Salevao, Lia Faatamalii and Fio Taualii on the morning of 

polling day before t.he booths "'ere opened for polling. 

Gi.ven the invol.vp.ment of Folasa. Teremia vii th the IDs alleged to have been 

given 11~' the first. respondent t.o her Sail Faasalafa Vaifale and the evidence of 

t.he ",itnesses Nai Fualaga and Toelau Talapau that t.hey observed Folasa Ieremia 

giving out. IDs to eJeotors at the Taufusi polling booth on polling day, Folasa 

Terem.ia. must he regarded as an accomplicp. In laIJ it can be dangerous for the 

Court. to aet. solel:\T on the uncorroborat.ed testimony of an accomplice. HOl..,rever 
• 

t.hF_~r8 i.s nothing to prevent the Court from so acting if it is satisfied of the 

trui-.ll of t.hp. evidence of an accomplice. And if the Court decides to a.ct on such 

t·.est.iJnon~y-, it must do so bearing in mind the h'Hrnin.g that it can be dangerous to 

8.1.")t. solel~~ on cUI accomplice' 8 uncorroroba.t,ed t,estirnony·. Bea.ring that warning in 

mind, I have deoided to aooept. the testimony of Folasa leremia as to the 

C011l1pction of the first respodnent to the IDs ",hioh were given out to tJ,e 

eleotors at the 1'aufusi booth on polling dRY. 

It. is olear from the evi.denoe of Folasa Ieremia that. the first. respondent 

had. i.n her custody a VAry large nUmbAI' of IDs for electors in Apia, estimated at 

150. T draF t.he inference from the "j thholding of those IDs by the first , 
respondent t.o b8 given out to electors on polling day that the reason for the 

1~i thholding of IDs Has for thp. purpose of inducing the eleotors oonoerned to vote 

for the first resoondent., or to prevent. t.hose eleotors from voting for anotJ1er 

candidate at tile election. 
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,. Of the electors Hhich t.he Hit.ness Nai Fualaga test.ified t.o have been given 

IDs by the support.ers of the first. respondent. at the Taufusi booth on pol.ling 

da:r-, Segia Peniamina.. Homeo Selesele FaIe, Tavui Tamotu, Naoupu Falea.o 1 Fila 

Leaoa Laupau and Lia Lafoga did not. appear t.o give evidence t.o deny the 

all"gation aff"ct.ing them. Of t.he electors that. the ,,,i tness ]ylilo Tusao ·testified 

-to IlJ:'t,\.-e been given lDs at the Taufusi booth on polling day, only the ~~'itness 

(' Romeo Seleselp- Fale did not appear to gi ve evidence to deny the allegation 
\ 

affecting him. Of the electors Hhom the Hitness Folasa Ieremia test.ifi.ed to have, 

heen gi ven IDs at t.he Taufus i hooth on polling day, Paese Tavui Toatasi did not 

appear t.o give evidence to deny the allegation affecting her . 
• 

I Lind as p. fact tha,t those electors I have just referred to and 'i,;ohose 

names were men.tioned. in the evidenoe fo.r the petitioner but did not ,gi,,·'p F:1.ny 

rebuttal evidence had th,,:i.r IDs Hi thheld by the f:i. rE,t. respondent for the purpose 

of inducing them to vote for the first respondent or t,o prevent -!.~hose electors 

fr'om voting for another candidate B.t the election .. 

Of those elect.ors ,·,ho appeared and t.estified, I am satisfied from the 

evidence of the Hit.nesses Se.1psele Eliala and Nai Fualaga tbat Tiafall 'feta. Has 

gi""n her ID by the supporterss of the first respondent at the Taufusi. booth on 

ptilli.ng da;.-. J am also satisfi.ed from the evidencp of t.he Hitnesses Nai Fualaga 

and ivlilo T!.lsao that elector Fala Tavui had his 1D given to him by the slJPport(~r~, 

0" t,hp firr .. t respondent a.t the Taufusi booth on polling day. I am also sat.isfied 

fr'om thp evidencp of the j:·.ritness Folasa Ieremia that, the IDs of electors Leaoa • 

Ko1io and Alai ma .. lo FR1eao tv-erp given t,n t.hem h~~ the supporte.rs of' thf:; fir'st 

respondent. (-l.t the Ta,ufusi booth on polling day, I t-JouL:l a.lso accept the uncoll.-
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t",'adicted evidence ,)f the Hitness and elector cIoeleoi Toleafoa that his ID Has 

ldthheld b~\' the first respondent and her commi.ttee Hhen it Has issued in February 

1986 and his In was only given back to him at the Taufusi booth on polling day. 

I find as a fact that those electors J have just. referred to in this part 

of my judgment had their IDs withheld by the fi.rst respondent for the purpose of 

( induoing those eJeotors to vot,e for the first respondent, or to prevent those 

eleotors feom voting for anot.her candidate at the election, 

In all then, I am satisfied that the allegation of undue influence against . 
• 

the first respondent. has been proved beyond reasona.ble doubt but only in respect 

of thos" electors I have fmmd to have been given thei r IDs by the supporters of 

UlA first respondent at the Taufusi polling booth on polling day. 

I turn now to thee allegation of undue influence in relation to the with­

holding of IDs by the first respondent of electors "ho cast their votes at 

Satupaitea on polling day, I must say that tohe evidence for the petitioner in 

respeot of this part of the ca.se "'"as really provided by only one Hitness, namely, 

Taataai Faagutu, He testi fled that he Has present at a meeting of the sub-

village of PitOHUU which '''as held at the house of the first respondent on 

2" Apri.1 1996. During that. meeting the first respondent gave out bundles of IDs 

to t)8 given to !Jle e lectors ~,,Jho "(.Jere present at that meeting. 

If 

i"-'1an;'"l of t,he .. electors of Pi tonuu 1.,rho Here named by Taataai Faagutu to have 

heen present at tha.t meeting of Pitonu_u and ~"ere given IDs by the first 

respondent appeared and testif.iAd in these proceedings. They included Nuufuli 
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Sevesi, Vaeoso Savea, Aliimaifiti Faalilo, Vasa Nelu, Faleao Samuelu, Talaia 

0iatamua, Taalili Selesele, Fetaua;. Sailasa and Lafuniu Tanielu. They all denied 

that. " meeting of the sub-village of Pi t.onuu Has held on 25 April 1996 in Hhich 

the first respondent gave out any IDs to electors. Other "itnesses like Talafu 

Akeripa, Tavui Ioane and Tavui Laupisi .,ho Here called for the first respondent 

also gave evidence that. their sub-vi.llage of Pi tonuu did not hold a meeting 

during election week. No other Hi tness Has able to confirm t,he evidence by 

'faat'·;l,ai Faagutu tbat a meeting of the sub-village of Pitonuu Has held during 

e] ect.ion ",;reek. Tn these:: circumstances I. 3m not pr'epa.red to accept the evidence 

g-rve:n by T'aai::.aai Faagutu. 

The Hi tness Foaese Fauatea gave evidence that 801: the Satufia polling booth 

on polling day he asked one Toiata Levao a.t 2. OOpm on polling day why she had not 

voted and Toiata Levao replied the first respondent, hNl her ID. Foaese Fauatea 

then t,estified that. he asked t.he committee for the first respondent and they 

r'-'plied the ID of Toiata Levao 'Jas '''ith ~the first respondent. 

:r find ·the evidence given by Foaese Fauatea to be hearsay. In any event 

I 1;,Jas not impressed t..Jith this witness's evidence during; cross-examination. I do 

not a.coept bis evidence . 

• 

I am therefore not satisfied that it has been proved beyond reasonable dout 

t.hat 1:.11p first respondent~ Hi thheld IDs of some of the elect.ors Hho "oted at the 

booths in Satupai-tea for ·the purpose of indllcing those eleotors to vote for the 

f'lrst respondent or to prevent those electors from voting for another candidate 

ai', the election. 

15 



, 

( 
\ 

• • 

• 

• 
I hu'n no'" to 1;he allegation that the village' cmmcil of Pitonuu and 

princi pally Talafu Ake lips, Leaoa Talavai, Tavui 10ane ami Tavui Laupisi had 

during electi.on Feek imposed a village ban on electors of Pitonuu from voting for 

any other candidate at the election but the first. respondent.. The evidence in 

respect of t.his all,,,gati.on Nas t.hat the sub-village of PH.onuu did not. have a 

meeting during election weeh:. 

Ta\lUi loane also gave evidence that Pitonuu Has united in its support of 

t.he candidacy of the fi rst respondent and t.he Hill of Pi t.onuu Has to vote for the 

f~rst respondent. He also denied that the village council of Pitonuu imposed a 

ban during elec.tion hTeeh: on eleotors of Pitonuu from voting for any c'andidate 
• 

other than the first respondent. 

The Hi tness Tavl.1:l Laupisi also gave similar evidence to that of Tavui 

Ioane. He sai.d that Pitonuu simply decided that the first respondent. Has t.heir 

candidate for t.he electi.on just as t.he other sub-villages Vaega and Satufia of 

Satupait.ea had also decided on their OHn candidates. 

The «i t.ne88 Talafu Akelipa. ,,180 gave evidence that the village oouncil .of 

PitOl1UU did not during election Heel\: impose A. ban on electors of Pitonuu from 

• • vo1:.J.ng for :3ny candidate .other than the first. re8pondent.. 

It is clear t.hat. t.he real and admi8sible evidence the peti t.ioner is relying 

on to support the "allegation that Pitonuu imposed a ban during elect.ion Heel\: on 

electors of Pi tom", from vot.ing for any candidate other than the first. respondent. 

is the (~videnoe of t.he l->Jitness Taataai Fa-B..gut.u. That 't~itness gave evidence that 
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he "as present at the meeting of Pitonuu held on 25 April and in that meeting 

Talafu Akel:lpa deolared a ban on eleotors of Pi tonuu from voting from any 

oandidate other than the first respondent and Leaoa Talavai spoke in support of 

the ban. No other mat,a; at the meeting spoke in opposition t.o t.he ban. 

On this very conflicting evidence, and partioularly as no other Hitness 
( 

apart from Taataa; Faagutu testified as t.o a meeting being held of Pit.onuu on 

25 April or during election week. I run not. satisfied t.o the required standard 

of proof that. t.he "Uegation against t.he village oounoil of Pi t.onuu has been made 

(",t. I have also notioed t.hat there is no deolaration sought in respeot of the 

alleged ban against the village counoil of Pitonuu either in the original . 
petition or in the "mended petition. 

I turn nOH t.o the oOlU1t.er-allegations made by the first. respondent. against 

t.he peti tioner. I deal first Hith t.he oount.er-allega.ti.on that on 20 April 1996 

the petitioner gave $20 to eleotor Leute Selesele for the purpose of induoing 

that eleotor to vote for t.he petit.ioner. 

Leute Selesele 1'110 is a blind old lady gave evi.denoe t.hat on 20 April 1996 

the petitioner Hho Has accompanied by NUll ViIi and Tuugalii Aga.fili came to her 

h~xlsP and Nuu ViIi int.roduoed the petitioner to her. After"ards Tuugalii Agafi,1.i 

fiave her $20 and t.old her that it Has a gift from the peti t.i.oner. Aooording to 

Leute Selesele she replied t.hat she could not. aOGept the $20 as the first 

respondent Has her" Hsi.ster", but bec.ause the petitioner's party insisted tbat she 

took the money; .she then told them to give the money to her chilclren Hho t-rere 

fb~ing the drinh:s. 
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~uu ViIi gave evidence that the petitioner and members of his oampaign 

committee TUQ<:;alii Agafili, SIOupule Tuafono, SeupullO Ropati and himsIOlf called 

at the house of SeupuJ e Tuafono and Leute Selesele was there. Leute Selesele is 

a sistlOr of Seupule Tua.fono and all the other members of thlO petitionlOr's 

oampaign committee ~>1ho Here present, Here in one Hay or another related to Leute 

Se lese le. I«1'IOn thlOY arri vIOd at. LIOutlO SIOlesele' shouse, refreshments "'lOre served 

( 
to thlO visit,ors and aooording t.o Nuu Vili, the petit.ioner and Tuugalii Agafili 

spoke and the committee advised the petitionlOr to givlO somlOthing to thlO old blind 

lady anCl tbe petitioner gavlO $20 to Tuugalii to give to the old lady as a gift 

Hlttich Has ~..;il.lingly acc(~pte(L Nuu Vili also denied thlO IOvidence by Leute 

Selesel10 that, sllP rejlOoted the monlOY and said the first., respondent "as her 
• 

sister; and that at' to give the monlOY to hlOr childrlOn. Nuu Vili said LIOute 

"illingly accepted the mone)' and thanked thlO petitioner for the gift. 

The petit,ioner in his evidence admitted to giving Leute Selesele 320 but 

said [,hat he "as moved by compassion as being Hi th this old blind elector revived 

for him memories of his mother's blind 8lmt "ho stayed "lith his family "hen he 

Has young. He also said that they Here in a household which strongly supported 

his candidacy and thnt Leut.e thanked him for the money. The petitioner denied 

that. Leute refused to acoept thf-: money aB the first respondent was her "sister!! 

Flhrl said Lo give t.he money' to her children 1:..:ho Here fixin.,g the drir.llts . 

• 

I-raving consiclered the evidence in respect of the present allegation, I am 

of the "lear vie" tha-Io given the -il1llitinence of the election and the fact tJ,nt the 

petitioner ann his campaign committee HerF out campaigning for the petitioner by 

introducing him to every household in the COl,lstituency, the giving of $20 to 
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L"eute Selesele, Hithout a request for that money, Has for the purpose of inducing 

Leute Selesele to vo·te for the petitioner. I am unable to accept the explanation 

,given by the petitioner that he Has moved by compassion because of memories of 

his maUler's blind allnt. NUll Vi1i on the other hand says it Has the committee 

,,-'ho advised the petitioner to give Leute some money. There was also no customary 

obligati.on on the petitioner to give money on this occasion. I am also unable 

to accept thr~ assumption that because Leute Selesele Has a sister of Seupule 

Tuafono and related to other members of the petitioner's campaign connnittee, she 

''C.cs there·fore necessarily a supporter of the petitioner at the election. If on 

tlte basis of th" evidence for the petitioner, Leute should be regarded an 

acnomplice 1 the:r'e is sufficient corroboration of her evidenoe in the evidence of 
• 

NUll Vili and the peti Uoner that money Has given to her. I accept Leute' s 

evidpnce. 

In all I find this counter-allegation of bri.bery to have been proved 

against the petitioner beyond reasonablp doubt. 

I turn not< to the second cOlmter-allegation which is one of treating and 

bribery against the petitioner, namely, that on 2 and 3 April 1996 the petitioner 

g,q,Ye t.hree cartons of beer and tt·J'O crates of soft drinks as "t-Jell as :$1,000 to six 

rrfa.tai.,s l)f Sat,upa.it.e.a for the purpose of inducing those electors to vote for thE' 

l:etitioner. From the evi.dence it is notJ clear that about forty rather than six 

nl8,tais Here involved. 

The ~::'vidence of I:he I-Jitness Asiata Peniamina 'h1ho Has called by the first 

respondent <{as that. on 2 April 1996, a delegation of mata:Ls from Satupai tea CHme 
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to lodge the nomination of the petitioner as a candidate in the election. After 

l:.he petitioner' a nomination Has lodged in the late afternoon the delegation Hent 

by invitation from t.he pet; tioner to the homestead of the petitioner' a father at 

Vai vase "here they '''ere provided "i th three cartons of beer and tHO oartons of 

soft drinks. One carton here means a dozen. Aft.er the drinks the petitioner's 

family served food for the group. ,~siata Peniamina further testified that the 

folloHing morning after they had breal,fast, provided by the petitioner, the 

pp.t.i t.i.nner han.ded him a. cheque for $1: 000 saying that was an insignificant sum 

of mone,c for each person to buy something to take home (faaoso) and for fares 

("asese). Acoording to Asiata Peniamina he ,then thanked the petiti.oner on 'behalf 

of the delegation for the !!holy· money\!o .. This Hitness also testified that he 

received $30 out of the money given by the petitioner and that it I,as not a 

condition of the peti tioner' s "monotagal1 to the village that he h'as to provide 

for the people of the distriot "hen they oame to Api.a. 

The evidenoe of the Hi tness Sootao Solomona is muoh the same as the 

evidenoe of the Hitness Asiata Peniamina ,,<s regards the drinks, food and money 

provided by the petitioner to the delegation whioh came from Satupai tea to loclge 

[",he nomination of the petitioner as a. candidate in the election. Hm-J8ver j he 

alsn said that he Has not, an original member of that delegation. What happened 

1',1-:1,8 that he Has coming to Apia for a- family y·./edding uhen he met h'ith member,s of 

the pet.itioner' s campaign commiteee on the ",harf at S81el010g" and they persuaded 

hi.m to come Hi th them t,o support the nomination of the petii:ioner as an eleotion 

candirlate. That 1.Jas hm-,' he joined the r.:lelegation. This Hitness received $28 

ff'orn the money· \:.Jhich 1-iFl..S given by the pet.itioner. 
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The evidence of the witness Savea Lavi lavi. ,,;ho Teas also called by the first 

respondent h'as much the same as the evidence of the last two witnesses as regards 

the cifelegat.iol1 froTH Satupai tea for the petitioner's nomination as an election 

eandidate and the provision of drinks, food and money made by the petitioner. 

This witness reoeived $28 from the money given by the petitioner and he '''as one 

of the electors Hho nomina'ted the petitioner as a candidate for election. 

The t.JitnesS8S 8al1ecl by the petitioner to r.ebut the evidence given by the 

l·dtnesses called for the first respondent Here Nai Fualaga j Lautafi Palata, 

F@aese Fal1atea, Fio Lotoruau a.nd Leaoa Fiti. 

affidavit "hich Has produced in evidence. 
~ 

These I·Ji tnesses signed a .i 0 i.nt 

Essent.ially "hat they said Has that a delegation consisting 11l8.i.nly of 

matais and untitled men from the sub-village of Vaega and a fe" from the sub-

villages of' 1'i t.onuu and Sat.uf'ia came t.o Apia to lodge the nomination of' the 

petitioner as a candidate in thA election. Sootao Solomona and Savea Lavilavi 

Hhl) Here two matais from Pitonuu had inclicated t.heir support for the petitioner's 

ca.ndidacy and t.hey freely joined the delegation. These Hitnesses' evidence in 

respec~. of the provision of drinks, food and money by the petitioner for the 

dAlegat.ion is substantially the same. They also said that the petitioner in 

~ving the money t.o the rlelegation had. said t,hat gi'ving of money might be seen 

'is oorrupt pra.ctjce but. because he Has AEiat:::J. he ~"as obliged to give them some 

fares (pa,sese). 

These \..-.ritnesses also .said that in. a.ccordance "t,:ith Samoan custom the "-illage 

of Satuprti tea expec~te(l t.o be accomoda.ted and led by Asia-ta., and ~,,"hen they 
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l~eturnC:::'d home to Satupai tA-?8. the;.~ also e}~pected to be ,given some faaoso and pasese 

by Asiata as he is one of the paramolm.t title holders of the village. As 

supporters for -r.he pet.itioner's candidac:-{ they also expected some manifestation 

of the petitionf~r's gratitude for their support for his candidacy. It is also 

Cl(-~81" from these Hi tn8sses evidence that every member of their delegation 

rf-'cei.ved same money from the 51.,000 hfhich Has gi Verl by the petitioner. 

( 
The evidenee of the petitioner is very mueh eonsistent Hith the evidenee 

"hioh pas gi.ven by his Hitnesses. He also said that "hen he gave the eheque for 

$1,000 to the delegation from Satllpaitea, he told them that giving of money at 

that time might be interpreted as inducement but the money he was giving them Has 

a."humble RHm and is not an induoement beca.use they Here all his supporters and 

as the holder .of the tit,le Asiata it Has part of his "monotaga" and customary 

obligation to givp t,hem some !lpaseset! and !lfaaoso!1. The petitioner also stated. 

that. "hrhen he gave the delegation food, drinks and money he Has simply 

reciprocating and fulf:illing his "rnonotaga" Rccording to Samoan custom and the 

,qrrangement with his village cO'LU1cil. He also considered the delegation to have 

been his supporters and the things that he gave them "ere an expression of his 

gratitude for their support and the loclging of his nomination. 

11:. must. be said a.t once that. t.he presentation by all election candidate of' 
• 
drinks, food or m.oney to ",lectors during a period of election is prohibited by 

thee provisions of the Electoral Aut 1963 as amended by the relevant provisions 

of the Electoral Amendment Act 1984 and constitutes an illegal pra,~tice. It does 
• 

not ma.ttet' ",het,her such a presentation i.Po requl red by custom, Ol~ ·h7hether the 

purpose ()f the C!J110idate in. ma.ld.ng the present.ation {,,-as to comply Hith Samoan 
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• custom. The only exoeption Hhich is permitted is a presentation which is made 

for a funeral ceremony'. 

I am satisHed that ",hat the petitioner did by giving a delegation of 

electors from his vi.llage drinks, food and money on 2 and 3 April 1996 

constituted an illegal practice. The next question is ",hether the same 

presentation ammmted to the corrupt pract.ices of treating and bribery. 

Tn V; .. 8t-J of t.!1R evidence l.Jhich has been adduced, I must make tHO matters 

clear. Samoan custom is not an excuse for committing a corrupt practice such as 

treating 0:[' bribery. The qUf}stion is not Hhether the provision or presentation 
• 

of drinl\s, food or money .by Cl candidClte to an elector is in accordance with 

Samoan custom. The real question is hThat Has the purpose or intention of the 

candi.date in maJdng the presentation. If t.he purpose for making a presentation 

of drinks, food or money was to comply Hi th SAmoan custom then -the mens rea 

requi red for a corrupt pract.ice is absent. If t.he purpcse for making such a 

presentation is to induce or influence electors to vote for a candicL.",t.e, then the 

mens rea for a corrupt practice has been est.ablished. 

I also do not nccept that it. is legally impossible for a candidate t.o treat 

(;r brib~ J1is 0':''1'1 supporters. To give dr'inks, food or money to one's supporters 

for the purpose of lIls,intaining and not losing their support for one: s candidacy 

r-an be trea.ting: or bribery, It is no different, from incluDing an eleotor tvho is 

not. a support.ror ,,'I' a candidate to become a support.c,r of that. candidat.e and t.o 

velt.e for tha.t. candida.te. Tn oulti vate the support of such an elector by giving 

him clrinh"s., food or money to ensure the continuance of his support. "lmtil he has 
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• ca"st his vote icc clearly a corrupt practioe. 

After (.~onsideration of the relevant evidenee in this case, I have corne to 

the cone IllS ion , not. Hi thOlli". some difficlllty, that there is a reasonable dOllbt 

Hl'le-rJter the petit.ioner's real purpose in providing drinh:s, food and money to the 

delegation Hhich came from Satupaitea Has to comply with Samoan custom or to 

induce these electors to continue their support for the petitioner and to vote 

for the petitioner at the election, The present cOlll1t,er-allegat,ion of corrllpt 

pr8.cticp ;~_gail1st-, the petitioner i.s therefore dismissed. 

I come no" to the quest, ion whether the peti tioner and the first respondent 
• 

had satisfied t.he residential requirement needed to qualify as a candidate in the 

la.st genera] election. 

Secti.on 5(:1) of the Electoral Act 1963 as amended by section 4(2) of the 

Eleetoral Amendment Act 1995 provides: 

"A person shall be disqualified for being a candidate for, or being 
"elected as a member of Parliament representing a constituency if he 
"loses any qualification required to enable him to be registered as an 
"elector of that constituency or that person has not resided in 
"W"8",,,rn SamaR for a period equalling or exceeding 12 months ending Hith 
"t.he day on "hich the nomination paper is lodged Hith the Chief Electoral 
"Offioer!!, 

Sect 1.on 4 (4) of the Electoral Amendment Act 1995 then goes on to provide 

• 

11 Noth ing in sl)bsect "ion (2).... of this act appl ies to -

II (a) 

" 
A person ",ho is appointed to a, post tmder the Foreign AffRirs Act 
1976 and is outside of Western Samoa during the course of tha.t 



• 
• 

.. 

• appointment. 

"(b) A person 'Iho j.s t.he spouse of t.he person so described". 

It. appears to me upon first reading of these provisions that the effect of 

section 4 (2) of the Electoral Amendment. Act 1995 is to provide a general rule of 

disqualification, namely, that a person who ha.s not resided in Western Samoa. 

( 
\ during the required period of time is not qualified to be a candidate in an 

elect ion. Section 4 (<1) of the Act then goes on to provide the exemptions to that 

general rule of disqualifi.cati.on. 

The crucial Horels in the statutory provision are the ,"orels "has not 
• 

resided" and raise in a more narr-OH form thA qllestion of "hat thA Hord "reside" 

lIleans. For assistance in resolving this question "'[ turn to some of authorities 

i.n 1",hich the question of residenoe has been discussed. In the ca.se of Re 

f'.'a .. ir·ars})I" Election Pet.it:ion [1.988J 2 NZLR 74 the full High Court of New Zealand 

when dealing with the provisions of the New Zealand Electoral Act 1956 equated 

"place of residence II lvith 1!usual place of' abode" and stated: 

!lA plac.e of abode is, He think, a place '\\There a person for the time being, 
"other than for a very brief stay, sleeps and eats and Hhich in general be 
"uses as a basp for his daily activities. That a place of abode can be 
l!t.l~mporary 0111y is clear.... ~Usl).al in tbis context He think connotes a 
11 t(':legree of regularity and frequency not, n(~cessarily continuous in the 
II'senc8 of being 1111irrt.errupted 1 but at te:3st continual in the sense of 
"(being repet,i tivp.' II • 

In t.he case of Fo1: F Stirle [1970J 3 .411 E R 7 Lord Delming rIR. said at p.12 

III think t.hat a person may properly be said t.o be (resident.' in a place 
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!1 H hen his stay there has a considerable degree of permanence. So I Hould 

"apply 1-,he simple test, : 'Jas there on 10th October 1969, a considerable 
"degreR of permanence in the 5tH", of the appellants in Bristol or 
!lC'ambridgp.? I t.hinl;;;: there l.Jas. They Here living -there and sleeping 
"t.here, The," \,'ere there fOI" at least. half the ",ear - as a minimum. Many 
'Tof -t-.hem 1ven~ thel~e for much more, especially the scienoe students, 
"because t.h\?y ha.vf"~ -r,C) \-vork in t.he va.cations in the laboratories. There 
'\ . .;,'-:'1..8 certainly a sufficient degree of permanence to make th.em (resident' 
"in Brist.ol or Cambl'idge~ as the case may" bel!. 

Lord Widgel'Y in the Harne case said at p.1;) 

• 

"It. is i.mperative to remember in -j-,hi.s context that I residence , implies a 
lIdE'gree of permanenc:~e. In the words of the Oxford English Dictionary; it 
!lis ('oncerned ~.Jith something Hhich Hill go on for a considerable time. 
"r'onsr;qllently a person l_s not entitled t:o c,:laim to be a resident at a 
"gjven tmm meret'{ beo3.\Jse hp P,q,ys a short~ temporary visit. Some 
I!s.ssumption of p8!.'manence 1 some degrt~e of continuity, Borne expeotation. of 
"<'ontinuity, is " vital factor Hhioh turns simple occupation into 
"res·Ld8nce" • 

Tn t.he field of pri vat!3 i.nternational laH or conflict of lal,,'"S there has 

been 8. t.endency to reject the concept of domioil as a connecting factor in favour 

(If residen.oe and the concepts of "ordinary residence" anel. Hhabitual residence" 

appear t.o havp been used for that purpose. In Cheshire and North's PriFate 

Illternatiol1B_Z LBN 12th eeln it is said at p.169 : 

lIThe' (>lords t ordinFI1'Y residence' should be given their natural and ordinary 
"meaning hThich f,r:i.1.1 t)8 the same re:gardlesH of the oontext J unless it can 
IIbe Shm''Il thErrJ the statutory frameHork requires a eli fferent meaning. 
"Ordin.':.1J::'Y reHidenc8 does not connote continuous physical presence; but 
l!ph;rsic~a] presence h'i th somp. degree of continuity, notHi thstanding 
"occasional temporary absences. 'There must, hotJever, be som.e physical 
!!prRSenc.e. Intentj on to resirle is not; alone! suffi.cient .... Each case 
"must 1 of course, d.epend on its Oh1n peculiar faots 1 but the authorities 
!lShOh' t.hat even ahsence for f.I cons.iderable period of time Hill not 
!!t.erminate a person's ordinary l:'8sidenoe if it is due to some speo] fie 
"HJl(1 Urlll:3u::.d oallse. as for inst,anoe "tJhen a. Hif8 accompanies her husband 
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!1during his emplo ..... lllJent in a. foreign country!!. 

As regards "habitual eesidence" Cheshire and North's Priw'.te International LaN 

says at p.169 

"Habitual residence could be summed up as a regular physical presence 
1!Hhic'h must, endure for some time. It does not require continua.l physical 
"presence and can oontinue despite considerable periods of res idence1!, 

It ~";8.s suggest.ed in the present case tbat the l-"ord "reside" should be acoorded 

tJle common law meaning given to the conoept of domicil. I am unable to F\,ccept 

that suggestion. If the legislature had intended to use the Hard domicile, it , 
could easily have used the Hords "has not been domiciled" i.n the Act instecKl of 

thG Hords "has not. resid.ed l1
• Secondly the oonoept of domicil is not s:V110nY11l0US 

"{·d.th the concept of residence. Domicil of ohoice goes beyond resi(ienoe and 

requires not only the fact of residence in a oertain country but also the 

intAntion of remaining in tha.t country permanently. 

Comi.ng back to the Hords of our O\<fl legislation, it must first be noted 

that section 5(:3) of the principle Aot as amended by section 4(2) of the 

Electoral Amendment Act 1995 does not use the ",ords "has not ordinarily resided" 

tlr' the t.J()rds "has not. hahituall,Y resided". It SilTlpl:i uses the Hords "has not 

. J d" reS_l( e . That behlg so, thp. use of the ooncepts of "ordinanc residencp." and 

"habitual residence" as guides to the question the Court has to resolve in t.his 

easE-' must be vie't,Jed h'i th ca.ution. 

Based_ on t.he authorities:: oi ted and bearing in mind y·J8 are interpreting the 
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• Hords of a partioular statute, I am of the vieH tha.t the {-.Tord "reside!! connotes 

living or staying in a place "ith some degree of permanence or continuity. It 

does not mean continuos physical presence in a place. There may be occasional 

or temporary periods of absence. It is also clear to me that the question of 

"\.,Jhether a person resides at a particular place Hould therefore be a question of 

fact. 

( 

TU.rning now t~o the evidence, I a'ccept the evidence of the pitness Valasi 

Ga.isoa t,hat since the first respondent married her late husband Lavatai Natia 

Seanoa in 1983, she has always lived "ith her husband in Taf1.ma, American Samoa. 

The firsl. respondent's )msbFmd died in 1992 and the first respondent has 
• 

C'.ontinued to live and stay in American Samoa Hhere she has an extablished home. 

From the evidence given by the matai", of Pitonuu it is clear that the first 

respondent has been performing her monotaga. to the villa.ge and the church. ,J~r, 

k~~~t~'.~~l1tri\,l~~lW;:'W~%j:f!3'ea:ll1f~"']~$j'~hWf:""V~~~~"~~i1ft;.:.. She a.lso visi ts 

her family at Pi tonuu but. I am satisfied that those vi.si ts were usually for a fet; 

days from time to time and she alHays ret,urned to American SamoR. afterwards. 

The' first respondent also has a house built. Rt Matautu-uta 11here she 

Bomet, hnes s t3-y':-~ on hPT vis"j t.s t.o West.ern Samoa bllt I am sa.tisfied t,ba.t she does 

not. live there perl1l:'!.nently at least until she came to Ives"tern Samoa. for the 
• 
genera] elect,ion a.nd t.;rOll the election for the Satupa.itea oonst,ituenoy. There t..j'as 

som8 evidence t.ha.t~ the first respondent has been living in Hestern Samoa for six 

months imInedip._tely p:.roeceding the election. 
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In those circumstances I find that the first respondent had not resided in 

Wes"tern SaJl]oa for a period of not les8 than 12 months ending 't·rt tJh the day on 

Hhich hp.r nomination paper <m.s lodged Hith the Chief Electoral Officer. 

i\S for the petitioner, lie left Western Samoa in 1992 to do post-graduat,(": 

legal studies in the AustTalian National University in Canberra. He did not 

return to IVest.ern Samoa. to stay until 24 Deceniber 1995. He did make some trips 

to \iJestern Samoa during the course of his studies and he did visit Western Samoa 

in ::/fa,rch and. i.n August 1995. However, most of the time the pet-Jitioner f~as living 

alY] staying in Austral ia for his post.graduat.e studies . 

• 
In those circumstances and for the purpose of the Electoral Act 1963, I: am 

of the viel< that t.he peti ti oner had not resided in Western Samoa for a period of 

not less -than 12 lTIont.hs ending with t.he day on whioh his nomination paper ;:·"as 

10rlgPd wit.h the Chief Electoral Officer. It is also clear that. the petitioner 

dORS not. come Hi thin the exemptions provided in section i[ (4) of the EtectoraJ 

Amendment Act 1995. 

As for the allegat.ion against the third respondent who is the Chief 

Electoral Officer' "r.hat she was hrrong in accepting the nomination of the first 

·t~espoll.dentl I fitlCl that the thi.rn l'P:spond.p.nt acted Hith total propriety on tIl.!? 

ba,S1.fi of tIle inforwati.on that, Has gi'len to her. 

-\8 I hav-p 1'o1.1nc1 the 8"llegation of t,mdue influence against. the fi. rst~ 

respondpnt to have been proved, a.nd as she had not resided in Western Samoa for 

not. li~ss (,han J 2 months ending (-lith t.he day her nominati.on pa.per H:::lS Jodgr-;:d, 1: 
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therefore declare the election of the first respondent void. I ,,,ill report my 

findings to the Honourable Nr Speal{er of the Legislative Assembly. 

I make no order as to costs between the petitioner and the fi.;;~t 

respondent. COImsel for the third respondent is aU.oHed seven days t.o file a 

memorandum as to costs if he Hishes to do so. 

/!.~.~4 ...... . 
CHIEF JUSTICE 
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